ZFIRST5

CONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Memo

To: Commission Members

From: Alexander Khu

Date: Monday February 6, 2017

Re: February 6, 2017 Commission Meeting

Enclosed are the materials for the February 6, 2017 Commission meeting which will take place as follows:

Time: 6:00 PM
Location: 1485 Civic Court Suite 1200, Concord, CA
925-771-7300

A light dinner will be provided.
Please let me know if you have any questions.
Kind Regards,

Alexander Khu, Executive Assistant
First 5 Contra Costa

1485 Civic Court

Suite 1200

Concord, CA 94520

925-771-7342 Direct
925-771-6083 Fax

_ . 1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520
© @ @first5coco tel (925) 771-7300 | fax (925) 771-6083

www.first5coco.org



1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

ICONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Commission Meeting Agenda

Monday, February 6, 2017, 6:00 pm
1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200
Large Conference Room
Concord, CA

Call to Order and Roll Call

Public Comment

The public may comment on any item of public interest within the jurisdiction of the First 5 Contra Costa
Children and Families Commission. In accordance with the Brown Act, if a member of the public addresses an
item not on the posted agenda, no response, discussion, or action on the item may occur.

Approval of Consent Calendar Action
A Commissioner or member of the public may ask that any of the following consent items be removed from
the consent calendar for consideration under Item 4.

3.1 Approve the minutes from the December 5, 2016 meeting.
3.2 Accept the Executive Committee Report from the December 5, 2016 meeting.

3.3 Approve the Contracts Docket
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Executive Director to execute a contract with
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP to conduct the Commission’s annual fiscal audit for
the four fiscal years 2016-17 to 2019-20 in an amount not to exceed $95,419 for
term February 7, 2017 to December 31, 2020. FY2016-17 budget line:
Administration: Professional Services ($133,000).

3.4 Accept the FY 2016-2017 Second Quarter Financial Report

Consider for discussion any items removed from the consent calendar.

Presentation of Conflict of Interest laws pertinent to Commissioners and staff
Mary Anne Mason, Chief Assistant County Counsel

Presentation of early findings from the 2016 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment
Lisa Colvig-Niclai, Kim Carpenter; Applied Survey Research

Policy and advocacy report Discussion
Executive Director’s Report Discussion
Communications Discussion

e Qver 1.2 Million California Children Eligible for Subsidized Child Care Did Not
Receive Services From State Programs in 2015
e State must make early education a top priority

Commission Meeting AGENDA
Monday, February 6, 2017
Page 1 of 2

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 ¢ 925.771.7300 e fax 925.771.6083 ¢ www.first5coco.org



"ZFIRST5

CONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

10.0 Commissioner F.Y.l. Updates Discussion

11.0 Adjourn

The First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to participate in
Commission meetings who contact the Commission’s offices, at least 48 hours before the meeting, at (925) 771-7300.

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the First 5 Contra Costa Children and
Families Commission to a majority of members of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are
available for public inspection at 1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 during normal business hours.

In consideration of those who may suffer from chemical sensitivities or who may have allergic reactions to heavy scents, First 5 Contra Costa requests that
staff and visitors refrain from wearing perfume, cologne, or the use of strongly scented products in the work place. We thank you for your consideration of
others.

Commission Meeting AGENDA
Monday, February 6, 2017
Page 2 of 2

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 ¢ 925.771.7300 e fax 925.771.6083 ¢ www.first5coco.org



"ZFIRST5

CONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Monday February 6, 2017

Agenda Item 3.1

Approve the minutes from the December 5, 2016 Commission Meeting.



1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

ZFIRST S

ICONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Commission Meeting
MINUTES
Monday, December 5, 2016, 6:00 pm
1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200
Large Conference Room
Concord, CA

Call to Order and Roll Call
The meeting was called to order at 6:09 PM.
Chair PJ Shelton began the meeting with introductions from all the attendees.

Commissioners in attendance were: Maria Fort, Marilyn Lucey for Barbara Cappa, Secretary -Treasurer
Gareth Ashley, John Jones, Wanda Session for Dr. William Walker, Katharine Mason for Kathy Gallagher,
and Kathy Marsh.

Alternates present were: Lee Ross, Matt Regan.
Also present was Deputy County Counsel Keiko Kobayashi.

Absent were: Barbara Cappa, Supervisor Federal Glover, Supervisor Karen Mitchoff, Dr. William Walker
and Kathy Gallagher.

Public Comment

Laurel te Velde, Director of Transition Services from Shelter Inc. shared progress of some of the parents
with young children who are finding employment and or in the process of moving out to apartments of
their own. She also reported that many of the parents who are in the shelter had participated in the
Triple P (Positive Parenting Program) that was facilitated through C.0.P.E. (Counseling Options and
Parent Education) Family Support Center in Concord.

Approval of Consent Calendar
Sean Casey asked to have item 3.4 - Consider approving the updated First 5 Contra Costa Employee
Compensation and Benefits resolution, be removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion.

A motion was made by Maria Fort and seconded by Gareth Ashley to approve the remaining consent
calendar.

AYES: Maria Fort, Marilyn Lucey for Barbara Cappa, PJ Shelton, Gareth Ashley, John Jones,
Wanda Session for William Walker, Katharine Mason for Kathy Gallagher, and Kathy Marsh.
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

Motion was APPROVED.

Consider discussion of any items removed from consent calendar

Sean Casey reported on Item 3.4, updates on the First 5 Contra Costa Employee Compensation and
Benefits Resolution. The updates served either to clarify existing language or to inserted policy
previously approved by the Commission, e.g., the 2017 health and dental benefits.

Commission Meeting MINUTES
Monday December 5, 2016
Page 1 of 6

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 ¢ 925.771.7300 e fax 925.771.6083 ¢ www.first5coco.org



5.0

6.0

ZFIRST S

ICONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

John Jones asked for a better way of clarifying the Benefits Resolution accrued vacation for eligible
intermittent employees who work 20 hours a week or less. Administrative Manager Shawn Garcia
acknowledged his request and said that she will look into it.

After discussion, Katharine Mason made a motion and Gareth Ashley seconded, to approve the updated
First 5 Contra Costa Employee Compensation and Benefits Resolution.

AYES: Maria Fort, Marilyn Lucey for Barbara Cappa, PJ Shelton, Gareth Ashley, John Jones,
Wanda Session for William Walker, Katharine Mason for Kathy Gallagher, and Kathy Marsh.
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

Motion was APPROVED.

Consider accepting the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Financial Audit.
Chairwoman PJ Shelton opened the public hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa Annual Financial Audit for
Fiscal Year 2015-2016.

The report was given by Nicholas Rosas, lead auditor of the accounting firm Vavrinek, Trine, Day &
Company. He informed the Commission that he participated in the Executive Committee meeting prior
to the Commission meeting and gave a more detailed report on their audit.

He referred to the handout provided in the packet and reported that in their opinion, the Commission
complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on the California Children and Families Program for the year ended June 30, 2016.

The Commission received an unmodified opinion, which is the highest form of opinion, on the financial
statements, with no findings.

There were no questions from the floor after the report.
Chairwoman PJ Shelton closed the public hearing on the FY 2015-2016 Financial Audit.

A motion was made by Katharine Mason and seconded by Maria Fort to accept the Annual Financial
Audit for Fiscal Year 2015-2016

AYES: Maria Fort, Marilyn Lucey for Barbara Cappa, PJ Shelton, Gareth Ashley, John Jones,
Wanda Session for William Walker, Katharine Mason for Kathy Gallagher, and Kathy Marsh.
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

Motion was APPROVED.

Recognize First 5 staff who have surpassed service milestones and appreciate the entire staff for their
continuing dedication and accomplishment

The Commission has adopted the practice of annually appreciating First 5 staff and recognizing those
who have surpassed service milestones:

Commission Meeting MINUTES
Monday December 5, 2016
Page 2 of 6

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 ¢ 925.771.7300 e fax 925.771.6083 ¢ www.first5coco.org



7.0

8.0

ZFIRST S

ICONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Two staff members have surpassed their fifteen year anniversaries:

Monica Nevarez, Grants and Contracts Assistant Il
Alejandra Plascencia, Community Liaison East County and Central County

One staff has surpassed their ten year anniversary:

Vanessa Miller, Grants and Contracts Assistant I

And one staff member has surpassed their five year anniversary:

Walter Aab, Public Affairs Program Assistant Il

After staff recognition, Sean Casey presented to PJ Shelton a commemorative vase to thank her for her
contributions to the Commission during her term as Chairwoman 2013 to 2016. PJ Shelton will remain
as a Commissioner.

Consider approving the Slate of Officers of the Commission for 2017:
Wanda Session, Chair of the Nominating Committee introduced the new Slate of Officers of the
Commission for 2017. She thanked all the officers who stepped up and offered their time to serve:

Chair: Kathy Gallagher
Vice-Chair: Gareth Ashley
Secretary / Treasurer: John Jones
Additional Non-Voting Member: Marilyn Lucey

Wanda Session made a motion and Maria Fort seconded, to approve the Slate of Officers of the
Commission for 2017.

AYES: Maria Fort, Marilyn Lucey for Barbara Cappa, PJ Shelton, Gareth Ashley, John Jones,
Wanda Session for William Walker, Katharine Mason for Kathy Gallagher, and Kathy Marsh.
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

Motion was APPROVED.

Presentation of the 2016 Year in Review
Sean Casey presented the year in review with the following highlights:

Over 8,345 children were served directly last year by F5-funded programs.

20,247 parents and caregivers were reached - including home visiting, First 5 Centers, 211 calls
from families with 0-5 children, new parent kits and more.

1904 early care and education providers received training and educational support through
programs such as PMD, QRIS, college advising and support, mental health consultation and/or
inclusion services. This figure also includes Raising a Reader classroom providers.

1238 training participants (representing 659 individuals) also benefited from First 5-sponsored
training and workshops, such as on the ASQ and those led by FESP and our internal training
efforts.

We continue to serve the families who otherwise would not have access to such services. Almost two
thirds earn less than $30,000, since 2005, 75% of new families reported income in this range. About a
quarter of mothers did not have a high school diploma. We also find that 29% of new parents to a

Commission Meeting MINUTES
Monday December 5, 2016
Page 3 of 6

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 ¢ 925.771.7300 e fax 925.771.6083 ¢ www.first5coco.org



CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

program other than a First 5 Center said that they already visited one.

Family practices around sugar-sweetened-beverages have also changed. 93% of children had not
consumed soda the previous day, and 41% had not consumed juice, up from 35% last year and the
highest percentage since we began asking the question 3 years ago.

This year, 95% of children have a regular health care provider. 66% of children receive Medi-Cal. And
12% of children exposed to tobacco smoke, which is a drop of 3 percentage points over last year.

Our impact from 2015-2016:

1) Help Me Grow: We continued this year to build out our HMG system to streamline
developmental services for families. In our Family Survey, 29% of parents had concerns about
their child’s development. 19% of children already had been identified as having a
developmental delay or disability when they start services. Concern about children’s
development has been climbing over the past few years even as the percentage of children
already identified or diagnosed with a disability or delay has remained fairly constant for the
past 4 years. All 211 operators are now trained to provide information about child development
and to probe callers with young children to determine if they have particular child development
concerns. Over 240 providers were trained to use the Ages to Stages Questionnaire, including
First 5 Center staff and early learning providers in the QRIS. The Centers are also mapping
programming to developmental domains on the ASQ so families can find activities that could
benefit their children. As a result, more children are being screened and earlier with the
average age dropping from 32 months to 29 months. County pediatric clinics are moving to
screening children at 9, 18 and 24 to 36 months to be in line with the American Academy of
Pediatrics recommended screening schedule.

2) The First 5 Centers: We are seeing that parents are reading more to their children, more often
and for longer periods when they participate at Centers for 9 months or more. 2,100 adults
participated in First 5 Center classes and activities, 14% of whom were dads. Enroliment is at
capacity and nearly 5,200 hours of scheduled classes and activities as well as 62 community
events and 118 Community Resource Workshops, with the “5 Protective Factors” at the
framework of their support programs.

3) Early Childhood Education: We are now up to 111 participating early learning sites in the
Quality Rating & Improvement System, which in turn enroll nearly 3,800 children. These include
19 private centers, 57 public centers and 35 family child care homes. Over 700 ECE students
received advising and support at the three community colleges, over half of whom worked at
QRIS sites. With First 5 Funds, the colleges were able to purchase textbooks to loan to 600
students. This year, 101 students advanced on the State’s child development permit matrix and
41 graduated with an Associates’ Degree in Early Childhood Education.

4) Community Engagement: Currently 180 parents participate in the three Regional Groups.
They’ve secured $2.5 million in city funding to improve parks in Antioch, Concord, Pittsburg and
San Pablo. Three playground improvement projects have been completed and three more are in
process. The groups are also partnering with residents and police and have launched four new
Neighborhood Watch programs, clean-up days, and physical activity programs in the parks. In
Pittsburg, a $20,000 Kaiser grant is supporting the new “Pittsburg PACE (Physical Activity,

Community Engagement)” program. The Monument group was part of a broad coalition that

Commission Meeting MINUTES
Monday December 5, 2016
Page 4 of 6

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 ¢ 925.771.7300 e fax 925.771.6083 ¢ www.first5coco.org



9.0

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

helped raise $12.5 million to improve pedestrian safety in San Pablo and Concord. The
Monument group has been so visible that they were asked to join the Raise the Roof Coalition,
a faith-based labor non-profit advocating for rent control and renter’s protection in Concord.

5) We have begun our new school readiness assessment process in September 2016 in 19 schools
in the Antioch, Pittsburg and Mt. Diablo school systems. The assessment covers four domains —
self-care & motor skills, self-regulation, social expression and kindergarten academics —and
then looks across all four to determine which children are ready, partially ready and not ready
for kindergarten. Preliminary data show that 32% of children were fully ready for school, 35%
partially ready and 33% not ready. It has been found that children who attended a preschool,
child care or transitional preschool in the previous year were more prepared for kindergarten.
More report on this will be made in the February 2017 Commission meeting.

6) Triple P (Positive Parenting Practices) Program: Parents who completed the program report
fewer and less intense behavioral challenges with their children as a result of their participation.
This year we have initiated discussions about expanding Triple P into settings as diverse as child
welfare, health clinics, school districts, probation offices and so on to create a larger ecology of
positive parenting across the county. Earlier this year, Matt Sanders, the psychologist who
created Triple P as part of this PhD thesis 30 years ago in Australia visited with 24 stakeholders
from a variety of sectors and learned about the program. Dr. Sanders also facilitated 2 Master
Class trainings for 20 Triple P practitioners in the county.

7) This past year we also have been learning and thinking about trauma and its effects on child
development with our partners at Zero Tolerance the RYSE Center and Contra Costa Behavioral
Health. With them, we were able to host a day with Dr. Vincent Felitti who coined the term
“adverse childhood experiences” in his groundbreaking research starting in 1995. 182 people
attended representing a diverse and wide swathe of agencies and providers.

8) The Year Ahead: First 5 Contra Costa will continue to deepen and broaden our efforts in our
main systems while building our advocacy efforts, strengthening partnerships and doing more
to help the families with young children in Contra Costa County. We’'ll continue to build and
strengthen our many collaboratives and coalitions such as the Family Economic and Security
Partnership; the Ensuring Opportunity Campaign to end poverty in Contra Costa; and the Early
Learning Leadership Group which will be working with school districts as new federal rules will
require them to develop 0-18 plans.

Annual Report to First 5 California for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.
The commission is required to have a public hearing on its annual report to the State.

Chairwoman PJ Shelton opened the public hearing on the annual report to California First 5 for the fiscal
year 2015-2016. She informed the Commission that all the collected data from all First 5s is used by the
First 5 Association to educate funders, advocates and legislators about the statewide impact of First 5.

Sean Casey thanked Lyn Paleo, of the Strategic Information and Planning Department for taking this on
this year. He also thanked Sara Burke, Database Coordinator and Heather Van Rykn, Strategic
Information and Planning Assistant, and Marnie Huddleston, Finance Director for helping complete the
report.

Commission Meeting MINUTES
Monday December 5, 2016
Page 5 of 6

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 ¢ 925.771.7300 e fax 925.771.6083 ¢ www.first5coco.org



10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

ZFIRST S

ICONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

First 5 Contra Costa was asked to provide data on service highlight reports on Targeted Intensive Family
Support Services, on Quality Early Childhood Care (ECE — Early Childhood Education) Investments.
Service Highlight of Policy and Broad Systems Change Efforts (FESP — Family Economic Security
Partnership), Public Education and Information (Quality Matters), and Organizational Support (Database
Management).

There were no questions on the floor. Chairwoman PJ Shelton closed the public hearing on the annual
report to California First 5 for fiscal year 2015-2016.

A motion was made by John Jones, and seconded by Marilyn Lucey, to adopt the Annual Report to First
5 California for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.

AYES: Maria Fort, Marilyn Lucey for Barbara Cappa, PJ Shelton, Gareth Ashley, John Jones,
Wanda Session for William Walker, Katharine Mason for Kathy Gallagher, and Kathy Marsh.
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

Motion was APPROVED.

Executive Director’s Report

Sean Casey reported that this year, several Commissioners joined him and some of staff at the
November 9 and 10, 2016 Child Health, Education, and Care Summit in Sacramento, California. Wanda
Session, Lee Ross, John Jones, Katharine Mason and Marilyn Lucey shared their experiences at the
summit, noting the variety of workshops and great speakers including the keynote. Sean Casey was
presenter on a pre-session workshop on Quality Rating and Improvement System (QRIS) and with
Commissioner John Jones on a Commissioner Panel Discussion on the future of First 5 funding.

Sean also announced that the First 5 Association will be holding the 2017 Advocacy Day, Tuesday
January 31°. He encouraged Commissioners to participate.

Communications
There were no reports this month.

Commissioner F.Y.l. Updates

Gareth Ashley reported that he had the opportunity to attend a Monument First 5 Center’s Parent Café.
He observed that it was very well attended with many fathers participating. He also commended the
center staff for being very helpful. Much of the discussion that evening was on the subject of Parent
Resilience.

PJ Shelton asked the group to remember those whose lives were lost in the recent Oakland warehouse
fire as well as all were affected by the tragedy.

Adjourn
PJ Shelton thanked the Commission and staff for all the support she received during her service as
Chairwoman. She reminded that the next Commission meeting will be on Monday, February 6, 2017.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:56 PM

Commission Meeting MINUTES
Monday December 5, 2016
Page 6 of 6

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 ¢ 925.771.7300 e fax 925.771.6083 ¢ www.first5coco.org



"ZFIRST5

CONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Monday February 6, 2017

Agenda Item 3.2

Accept the Executive Committee Report from December 5, 2016 meeting.



1.0

2.0

3.0

"ZFIRST 5

CONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Executive Committee
Minutes

Monday, December 5, 2016
4:00 p.m.
Small Conference Room,
1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA

Call to Order

Meeting called to order at 4:15 PM by PJ Shelton. Also in attendance were Commission
members Gareth Ashley, Kathy Gallagher and Katharine Mason, and staff Sean Casey,
Cally Martin and Marnie Huddleston

Public Comment
There was none.

Staff Updates
Cally Martin provided the program update:

At the end of October we hosted staff from the Legislative Analyst’s Office for a QRIS site visit. LAO
staff visited two preschools in the West Contra Costa School District and met for a round table
discussion at the Richmond Community Foundation with many of our partner agencies including the
Contra Costa Office of Education, the Child Care Council, Community Services Bureau, and Diablo
Valley College.

The East County Regional Group launched Pittsburg PACE —a community-led walking and physical
activity club — in August, with support from Kaiser Permanente. The club is a response to
community members listing safety concerns as the top barrier to park use. Three month later,
evaluation surveys reveal that 97% of participants report they are feeling safer at the park as a result
of participating in the program.

In November, the ECRG advocated before the Antioch City Council for approval of city funds for a
new, all-abilities playground at the second priority park identified in the Antioch Parks Assessment
(Prosserville Parks).

Forty people attended a FESP sponsored elections forum on October 6 with the head of the
California League of Women Voters and the Executive Director of Building Blocks for Kids on the
importance of voter registration and mobilization as well as to learn about relevant ballot initiatives
that impact children and families

With leadership from Evaluation Coordinator Lyn Paleo, staff completed the annual report
submission to First 5 California. Evaluation staff also worked with our external evaluation
consultants on a survey of home visiting participants and with First 5 Alameda staff on a joint
evaluation framework of developmental playgroup services.

Sean Casey added that we have filled the new Strategic Information and Planning Manager position.
Sarah Crow, formerly of the Opportunity Institute and Next Generation, will be coming on with us in
early January. We're very excited to add her considerable knowledge and experience around early
childhood policy to our team.
Executive Committee
MINUTES

December 5, 2016
Page 1 of 2

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 « 925.771.7300 « fax 925.771.6083 « www.first5coco.org



4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

The public may comment on any agenda item or any item of public interest within the jurisdiction of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and
Families Commission. In accordance with the Brown Act, if a member of the public addresses an item not on the posted agenda, no response,

"ZFIRST 5

CONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Commission Updates
There were none.

Statewide Updates

Sean updated the Committee on the First 5 Association’s recent activities. Several of our
Commissioners and staff were able to attend the First 5 Summit in November and had
glowing reports on the sessions they were able to attend. The Association continues to
sharpen and deepen its advocacy activities, working closer with many of the other early
childhood advocates in California. First 5 will have its annual Advocacy Day in Sacramento
on January 31 and Sean welcomes any Commissioner who is interested in attending. Sean
reported that he has been nominated for a second term as President of the First 5
Association.

Items for Consideration

6.1 Overview of the FY 2015-16 Financial Audit

Nick Rosas and Kinnaly Soukhaseum of the auditing firm Vavrinek, Trine and Day, walked
the Committee through the Commission’s annual Financial Audit. There were no findings
and the firm gave the Commission their unqualified assessment.

Review agenda items for upcoming Commission meetings

At the February meeting we will have presentations on the Kindergarten Readiness
Assessment recently carried out in three school districts and on the 2016 survey of home
visiting participants.

The April meeting will include the presentation and approval of the 2017-18 agency budget.

Adjourn
The meeting adjourned at 5:35 pm.

discussion, or action on the item may occur.

The First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to
participate in Commission meetings who contact the Commission’s offices, at least 48 hours before the meeting, at (925) 771-7300.

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the First 5 Contra Costa
Children and Families Commission to a majority of members of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission less than 96 hours
prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 during normal business hours.

In consideration of those who may suffer from chemical sensitivities and may have allergic reactions to heavy scents, First 5 Contra Costa
requests that staff and visitors refrain from wearing perfume, cologne, or the use of strongly scented products in the work place. We thank you

for your consideration of others.

Executive Committee
MINUTES
December 5, 2016
Page 2 of 2

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 « 925.771.7300 « fax 925.771.6083 « www.first5coco.org



"ZFIRST5

CONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Monday February 6, 2017

Agenda Item 3.4

Accept the FY 2016-17 Second Quarter Financial Report



ﬂ FI RST 5 FY16/17 Budget FY16/17 Second Quarter Revenue and Expenditures
CONTRA COSTA |F5 Contra Costa Other Funds Total Budet F5 Contra Costa| Other Funds Total Revenue % of Budget
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION Funds Funds and Expense
Line # REVENUE I
1 Prop 10 - Tax Apportionment 7,514,958 7,514,958 4,078,203 4,078,203 54%
2 First 5 California IMPACT - 733,569 733,569 230,796 230,796 31%
3 COE/Preschool QRIS Block Grant - 366,631 366,631 216,531 216,531 59%
4 COE Infant-Toddler QRIS Block Grant - 381,527 381,527 147,196 147,196 39%
5 Thomas J. Long Foundation Help Me Grow - 1,290,000 1,290,000 - -
Sunlight Giving - - - 100,000 100,000 -
6 Interest Income 115,000 115,000 53,852 53,852 47%
MHSA/Community Engagement Grants - 93,250 93,250 60 47,971 48,031 52%
TOTAL REVENUE 7,629,958 2,864,977 10,494,935 4,132,115 742,494 4,874,609 46%
8 Fund Balance 3,962,057 384,372 4,346,429 595,701 203,044 798,745 18%
TOTAL REVENUES AND FUND BALANCE 11,592,015 3,249,349 14,841,364 4,727,816 945,538 5,673,354 38%
PROGRA
Initiatives 7,423,647 1,966,969 9,390,616 2,947,722 540,252 3,487,974 37%
9 Early Care and Education Initiative
10 Professional Development 885,006 140,000 1,025,006 398,250 1,250 399,500 39%
11 Early Learning Quality 64,000 653,114 717,114 45 298,188 298,233 42%
12 Literacy 212,080 50,000 262,080 67,936 50,000 117,936 45%
13 Total 1,161,086 843,114 2,004,200 466,231 349,438 815,669 41%
14 Family Support
15 First 5 Centers 2,328,718 2,328,718 1,035,064 1,035,064 44%
16 Home Visiting 1,255,015 1,255,015 540,000 540,000 43%
17 Training and support 25,200 25,200 2,141 2,141 8%
18 Total 3,608,933 3,608,933 1,577,205 1,577,205 44%
19 Early Intervention
20 Therapeutic Services 227,250 77,250 304,500 29,084 26,971 56,055 18%
21 ECE Consultation 993,177 993,177 446,930 446,930 45%
22 Children's Developmental Needs 345,000 886,605 1,231,605 103,348 163,843 267,191 22%
23 Children Experiencing Stress/Trauma 397,294 397,294 147,526 147,526 37%
24 Training and Consultation 25,000 25,000 7,571 7,571 30%
25 Total 1,987,721 963,855 2,951,576 734,459 190,814 925,273 31%
26 Community Information and Education
27 Public Information 520,157 160,000 680,157 102,018 102,018 15%
28 Community Engagement 140,750 140,750 67,509 67,509 48%
29 Family Economic Stability 5,000 5,000 300 300 6%
30 Total 665,907 160,000 825,907 169,827 169,827 21%
31 Program Expenses
32 Program Salaries & Wages 1,116,390 602,658 1,719,048 554,962 223,803 778,765 45%
33 Program Employee Benefits 583,136 342,176 925,312 267,379 122,016 389,395 42%
34 Office Overhead and Other Expenses 356,370 39,900 396,270 100,184 100,184 25%
35 Total 2,055,896 984,734 3,040,630 922,525 345,819 1,268,344 42%
36 TOTAL PROGRAM 9,479,543 2,951,703 12,431,246 3,870,247 886,071 4,756,318 38%
37 EVALUATION
38 Evaluation Salaries & Wages 307,284 48,091 355,375 109,880 8,248 118,128 33%
39 Evaluation Employee Benefits 166,099 26,014 192,113 46,392 3,535 49,927 26%
40 Professional Services 410,286 80,043 490,329 141,615 20,379 161,994 33%
41 Office Overhead and Other Expenses 65,066 65,066 28,871 28,871 44%
43 TOTAL EVALUATION 948,735 154,148 1,102,883 326,758 32,162 358,920 33%
1
44 Administrative Salaries & Wages 521,209 94,726 615,935 282,688 19,114 301,801 49%
45 Administrative Employee Benefits 257,073 48,772 305,845 133,248 8,192 141,439 46%
46 Professional Services 133,000 133,000 30,794 30,794 23%
47 Purchased Services, Equip Lease, Supplies 182,645 182,645 36,984 36,984 20%
48 Office Overhead 69,810 69,810 47,098 47,098 67%
49 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 1,163,737 143,498 1,307,235 530,811 27,305 558,116 43%
50 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,592,015 3,249,349 14,841,364 4,727,816 945,538 5,673,354 38%
384,907
Fund Balance as of 6/30/2016:
Distribution of expenses by department: Program 84% Nonspendable 346,795
Evaluation 6% Prepaids and Deposits 132,795
Administrative 10% Loans Receivable - Brighter Beginnings 214,000
Total 100% Restricted 549,405
Long Foundation - Help Me Grow 549,405
Committed 841,227
NOTES: Capital Assets 841,227
1 Payments will be received in January and June Assigned 4,574,141
2 Unrestricted grant/1st year of three year grant Elimination of FY16/17 Budget Deficit 3,962,057
3  Long Fdn Help Me Grow funds received in prior year used for HMG expenses Leases 612,084
4 $384,908 staff salaries and benefits paid with grant funds Unassigned Funds 21,924,788
Contingency Fund 7,500,000
Unassigned 14,424,788
Total Fund Balance 28,236,356

F:\Commission\1 Commission Meetings\05. February 6, 2017\MATERIALS\Commission Report Qtr 2 FY16-17.xIsx



"ZFIRST5

CONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Monday February 6, 2017

Agenda Item 6.0

Presentation of early findings from the 2016 Kindergarten Readiness
Assessment



School Readiness Assessment

@E‘Yﬁ'«"ﬁ 2016 CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
'IJ KINDERGARTEN READINESS ASSESSMENT

Purpose of the Readiness Assessment

This study profiles readiness among kindergarteners in Contra Costa County. This is the first large-scale kindergarten
readiness assessment funded by First 5 Contra Costa.

The goal of this study is to gather baseline levels of readiness among children in the county, particularly those living in First 5
service areas. Additionally, this study seeks to create a better understanding of the factors that influence readiness,
particularly those considered “malleable,” such as participation in specific programs or services (preschool, parenting classes,
etc.).

Study Design and Methodology CoER
Contra Costa County Office of Education, First 5 Contra Costa, and Applied
Survey Research (ASR) approached Contra Costa County school districts
located near First 5 service areas about participating in the kindergarten
readiness study. Three districts enrolled: Antioch, Mt. Diablo, and Pittsburg
Unified. ASR selected 19 schools that were located near First 5 Centers;
these schools tended to have lower 3™ grade reading proficiency and high
poverty rates relative to other schools in the district and county.

SELY-AEGULATION

SOCIAL EXPFRESWON

One teacher from each selected school used the Kindergarten Observation
Form (KOF) to assess students in their class at the beginning of the school
year. In addition, 71 percent of parents completed a Parent Information
Form (PIF), which provided data on additional family and child factors
often associated with Kindergarten readiness.

Characteristics of Participating Children

The table below presents the demographic, educational and family characteristics of the 425 children who participated in this
study, including for children who were “Fully Ready” and “Not Ready”:

GENDER Female 49% 41% 55%
RACE/ETHNICITY Hispanic/Latino 52% 53% 41%
White 12% 9% 13%
Black/African American 11% 14% 12%
AGE Younger than 5.5 years 43% 52% 33%
Between 5.5 and 6.0 years 47% 42% 51%
6.0 years and older 10% 6% 16%
EDUCATION English Learner 45% 51% 29%
Special Needs 6% 10% 3%
Prior Formal ECE (Center, FCCH, TK) 69% 65% 77%
FAMILY Family Income Under $35K 56% 67% 48%
CHARACTERISTICS Mother Has HS Diploma or Less 60% 52% 38%
Single Parent Household 34% 48% 22%

Applied Survey Research



Portrait of Overall Kindergarten Readiness

35%

33% 32%
Across the 425 kindergarten students assessed in Contra Costa County,
this study found that 32 percent of the children assessed scored as "Fully
Ready," indicating that they had mean scores in Kindergarten Academics,
Self-Regulation, and Social Expression that are highly correlated to third
grade academic success. The remainder of the children scored "Partially NotReady  Partially Ready  Fully Ready
Ready" (35%) or “Not Ready” (33%). (0 areas) (1-2 areas) (all areas)

Strongest Predictors of Kindergarten Readiness

A multiple regression model was used to find the factors that best predict readiness in Contra Costa County, after controlling
for all factors in the model. The results showed the factors below were significantly associated with readiness.’

Health &
Well-being
Age

Child Concerns

Family
Characteristics

Parent Support
Activities

Gender

Formal ECE

Next Steps

HEALTH & SCHOOL
WELLBEING READINESS

PARENT
CHILD SUPPORT
CONCERNS FAMILY ACTIVITIES

CHARACTER-
ISTICS

Children whose teachers say they come to school hungry, tired, or sick on at least some days were less
ready than those who do not

Older children were more ready

Children whose parents reported fewer child-related concerns—such as being concerned about
managing their child’s behavior or feeling their child is much harder to care for than most children—
were more likely to be ready

Children whose mothers had more than a high school education, whose family income was at least
$35,000, and who came from multi-parent households had higher readiness than children who lacked
one or more these characteristics

Composite index of 9 items about other activities parents have done to support them in parenting, such
as home visits from a nurse or community worker; books, magazines or newspapers; or parenting
websites. Children whose parents engaged in at least 1 of these activities were more ready.

Girls were more ready than boys

Having attended a pre-K program (Head Start, other center-based program, family child care home or
transitional kindergarten program) was related to higher levels of readiness.

=  Repeat the assessment to include more districts, schools, and classrooms in order to broaden our understanding of
kindergarten readiness across the county.

= Use the data to reexamine First 5’s investments and promote better service integration between First 5 and other
service systems for children and families.

"'Multivariate linear regression with seven significant factors, controlling for school effects (percentage of students with Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL)).
Overall model accounted for 37% of variance (R’ = .370). Largest variances: HEALTH (17%), AGE (9%), FRL (3%), all others (1%-2%).

Applied Survey Research



"ZFIRST5

CONTRA COSTA

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES COMMISSION

Monday February 6, 2017

Agenda Item 9.0

e California Budget & Policy Center Fact Sheet
e State must make early education a top priority



California Budget
" & Policy Center Fact Sheet

Independent Analysis. Shared Prosperity. DECEMBER 2016

BY KRISTIN SCHUMACHER

Over 1.2 Million California Children Eligible for Subsidized Child
Care Did Not Receive Services From State Programs in 2015

Parents with low- and moderate-incomes often struggle to stay afloat, balancing the soaring cost of child care against
the high price of housing and other expenses. California’s subsidized child care and development programs, which
are funded by both the state and federal governments, help many families make ends meet and allow them to

avoid difficult choices about where to leave their children while at work." Yet, seven years after the end of the Great
Recession, these programs as a whole continue to operate at below pre-recession levels, with inflation-adjusted
funding down from 2007-08 levels due to state budget cuts. This means that far fewer families with low and moderate

incomes receive subsidized child care today than before the Great Recession began in 2007.

There is tremendous unmet need in California for subsidized child care. In 2015, an estimated 1.5 million children from
birth through age 12 were eligible for care, according to a Budget Center analysis of federal survey data.? However,
only 218,000 children were enrolled in programs that could accommodate families for more than a couple of hours
per day and throughout the entire year.® Child care subsidies provide job stability and have been shown to increase
parents’ earnings.* Subsidies also allow families to afford higher-quality child care where their children can learn and

grow.® Boosting support for families struggling to afford child care is critical, especially given that the cost of child care

Six Out of Seven Children Eligible for Subsidized Child
Care Did Not Receive Services From State Programs in 2015

Estimated Number of California Children Eligible for Subsidized Child Care = 1,479,000
Number of Children Enrolled

in a State Program
218,000*

Number of Children Eligible for
but Not Enrolled in a State Program
1,261,000

*Includes children enrolled in the full-day California State Preschool Program (CSPP). Excludes children
enrolled in the part-day CSPP or the Handicapped Child Care Program. Enrollment is for children from
birth through age 12 in October 2015, except for California Community College CalWORKSs Stage Two,
which reflects an estimate for the 2015-16 fiscal year.

Source: California Department of Education, Department of Finance, Department of Social Services, and
Budget Center analysis of US Census Bureau, Current Population Survey data

1107 9th Street, Suite 310, Sacramento, CA 95814 916.444.0500 contact@calbudgetcenter.org calbudgetcenter.org | 1



CALIFORNIA BUDGET & POLICY CENTER |

and nursery school nationally has outpaced overall inflation since the end of the Great Recession.® In California, more
than two out of three families with children who are living in poverty include someone who is working.” Yet, in 2015
the cost of child care for an infant and school-age child in a licensed center was equal to 99 percent of the annual

income for a single mother and two children living at the federal poverty line ($19,096).8

Recent years have seen bipartisan support for subsidized child care at the federal level. In 2014, Republicans and
Democrats worked together to reauthorize the Child Care and Development Block Grant (CCDBG) — the primary
source of federal funding for subsidized child care.? This reauthorization included reforms to ensure the health

and safety of children, enhance the quality of programs, and simplify families’ access to and retention of services.
However, this reauthorization did not provide sufficient federal funding to fully implement these new provisions. In
addition, President-elect Trump’s child care proposal falls short in helping low- and moderate-income families afford
the high cost of care and, furthermore, would primarily benefit higher-income families. The President-elect’s plan does

nothing to address the vast unmet need for subsidized child care.

State and federal policymakers must increase public investment in subsidized child care and development programs.
Affordable child care is critical to supporting low- and moderate-income families while parents are at work and is vital

to helping families achieve economic security.

This analysis is the first part of a multiphase effort to analyze subsidized child care and development programs in
California. Future phases of this work will examine the unmet need for subsidized child care across different age groups
and by race and ethnicity, and will also include an analysis of the number of children and families that would be eligible if
the income eligibility limit were updated to reflect the most recent data.

1 Families are eligible for subsidized child care if the child who would receive care is under the age of 13; the family establishes an appropriate eligibility status, such
as by having an income below the limit set by the state; and the family demonstrates a need for care, such as parental employment. Families generally must meet
the same income guidelines applicable to child care to qualify for the California State Preschool Program (CSPP), which is funded solely with state dollars. State law,
however, allows up to 10 percent of families in the state preschool program to have incomes up to 15 percent above the income eligibility limit, but only after all other
eligible children have been enrolled. The CSPP is a part-day program offered for roughly nine months of the year. Some children receive "wraparound” services that
provide subsidized child care for the remainder of the day and throughout the entire year. To be eligible for the full-day CSPP, families generally must meet the same
guidelines regarding eligibility status that are applicable to subsidized child care.

2 Budget Center analysis of US Census Bureau, Current Population Survey data. Data limitations likely result in a conservative estimate of the number of children in
California who are eligible for subsidized child care. For more information about the methodology used to calculate this estimate, see the Technical Appendix. http:/
calbudgetcenter.org/Appendix-Subsidized-Child-Care_Dec2016/.

3 The 218,000 figure reflects children enrolled in the full-day CSPP or in one of the following subsidized child care programs: Alternative Payment Program; CalWORKSs
Stages One, Two, or Three; Family Child Care Home Network; General Child Care; and the Migrant Child Care and Development Program. Enrollment is for October
2015, except for California Community College CalWORKs Stage Two, which reflects a Department of Finance estimate for the 2015-16 fiscal year. This analysis
includes the full-day CSPP, which consists of part-day preschool and “wraparound” child care, because it accommodates many - although not all - families' work
schedules throughout the year, and thus approximates the experience that a child would have in a high-quality subsidized child care program. In contrast, this analysis
excludes roughly 95,000 children who were enrolled in the part-day CSPP, without access to wraparound child care, in October 2015. This is because most families
with low and moderate incomes likely need wraparound care in order to supplement the CSPP's part-day, part-year schedule. This analysis reports enrollment data for
a single month - as opposed to a monthly average for 2015 - because the California Department of Education (CDE) does not typically separate part-day and full-day
CSPP enrollment when reporting monthly averages. The CDE also states, “Caution should be used when interpreting monthly averages as some programs do not
operate at full capacity throughout the entire year (e.g., State Preschool) while other programs have seasonal fluctuations in enrollment (e.g., Migrant Child Care)."
Finally, the data are for October 2015 because the CDE's point-in-time reports are only available for the month of October.

4 See Heather Boushey, Staying Employed After Welfare: Work Supports and Job Quality Vital to Employment Tenure and Wage Growth (Economic Policy Institute: June
1,2002); Sandra K. Danziger, Elizabeth Oltmans Ananat, and Kimberly G. Browning, "Childcare Subsidies and the Transition From Welfare to Work," Family Relations

1107 9th Street, Suite 310, Sacramento, CA 95814 916.444.0500 contact@calbudgetcenter.org calbudgetcenter.org | 2


www.calbudgetcenter.org/Appendix-Subsidized-Child-Care_Dec2016/
www.calbudgetcenter.org/Appendix-Subsidized-Child-Care_Dec2016/

CALIFORNIA BUDGET & POLICY CENTER |

53(2004), pp. 219-228; Nicole D. Forry and Sandra L. Hofferth, “Maintaining Work: The Influence of Child Care Subsidies on Child Care-Related Work Disruptions,”
Journal of Family Issues 32 (2011), pp. 346-368; Yoonsook Ha, “Stability of Child-Care Subsidy Use and Earnings of Low-Income Families,” Social Service Review 83
(2009), pp. 495-525; and Erdal Tekin, "Child Care Subsidy Receipt, Employment, and Child Care Choices of Single Mothers," Economics Letters 89 (2005), pp. 1-6.

5 Anna D. Johnson, Rebecca M. Ryan, and Jeanne Brooks-Gunn, “Child-Care Subsidies: Do They Impact the Quality of Care Children Experience?" Child Development 83
(2012), pp. 1444-1461.

6 US Bureau of Labor Statistics, CPI Detailed Report: Data for June 2009, Table 4, pp. 17 and 22, accessed at http://www.bls.gov/cpi/cpid0906.pdf; and US Bureau of
Labor Statistics, CPI Detailed Report: Data for October 2016, Table 4, pp. 16 and 21, accessed at http://www.bls.gov/cpi/cpid1610.pdf.

7 This figure is based on the federal government's Official Poverty Measure. Analysis restricted to families with individuals that are able to work. Budget Center analysis
of data from the US Census Bureau, Current Population Survey, 2016.

8 Kristin Schumacher, Child Care and Development Programs in California: Key Context and Current Issues (California Budget & Policy Center: September 28, 2016), p. 7.

9 Federal Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funding also supports subsidized child care in California.

1107 9th Street, Suite 310, Sacramento, CA 95814 916.444.0500 contact@calbudgetcenter.org calbudgetcenter.org | 3



“BAOUOLIPI00SSY
WL 11 P2IODIUCT
7 2uR e B0y
PIOOSSY G 15410 S0
AQIDIALY IALINIFXD §1 EIUUIDY

13K 81 JUSIOT

.E,S.
"oRng

N0 30] uonepunog Junsey
© PTG PUe JUUISas5]
POOUIDIRS AjIEe 10 peaj o}
Apunazoddo o1 seY BILIO]
~I1ely ‘AfJRUIOTIBLE SOLUL

SIIIEIOA F0€J oM ITTUAA
JUSWIS2ANT DIE [T
30 N0l o 303 81
SIPEIID DTN
IOU Op @M 1811 08 L1077 W
PNSST T¥ i :
wnur oA 1stsxsd An 1
pue Aupenbou] 10 851040
“qooyosaxd iof 1aoddns
~-qod-srenbspe WO
"531edIa3unoD pade]
-IALId 230U X311} UM DioL]
Buzherd [one1 € UO W
md djey 123 swueagord
A3rienb 01 $5000% 24BY
10U O ‘SOI[IE] TEDIIDUNY
UBILIY PUB OUNE] WO
29043 Ajjrioadss ‘st
AURII 003 - LTRION[RD) JO
AISIBATUN S} 3B UOnM] JO
10 1800 24l 01 9[qEIRAIOD
2ie sjoouosaad sreAtid
10 591BX 10 1BTT DIOTM
- RILLION RO Ul ABDO],
3ILD YIESY DL 2IBI[OM
‘U0 10] $1507 DooNpax

U0 Peseq ‘0LUgf o Mjeteg

SINING € S [{IHL BI85 N0

‘acneonpe Ales uo Aepol
1tads TB[JOD AIDAD 10

‘Auotd v 31 avew

puz toneonpo Ajres Io
aourcdinT oul azu3esol
1S oM /107 BT "SISjiom
100119801d 107 $aSEaIOW
S8em SUIAOUISI STILM 530[S
[ooyosaxd paydadxo s ok
STU} 10} BUIpUnY SUT[IE]s
03 pa3do 10130408 2y
198png 81-£107 posodoxd
A[Mau T U7 1ng ‘SPIC-18aA
% J0J sureiBoid xopuny
feuonisues; aazesaid pue’
SI2YI0M 10T sadrMm S1qeal]
srow woddns 01 sjooyos
-oxd [eoo] Mmof[es1018
[ooyasaid ppe pinom ey
{eop 108pnq B 1Im 1ead
1se] sso13cad yuerrodun
SpewW UMGIg AL13( "A0D)
*SIOLE OP 03 PIOU 97

*S[A9] UOISSa001-21d MOJaq

wnstad (7 110S §T UonEINps

DUE 8180 ATES 107 SUIpurny

27238 “SoTTuE] Bunjicm

prie WIDTAD 000001

B arou 103 sopnumuoddo

JOo0UOs2I4 PUe 218D PIIYD

FUD B “HOISSI0I 912
Bump vonEonPe AfTes 10§
Burpumy Uy vOTNq T veyl
SIOUI DAYSES BIIOHED

‘DUOASG pUE UoLIedIop
-UTy UT 8520008 10] UdIP
-[iyo asedord M B S8
prgo Ampenb ‘spqepiogye
03 '$52008 2ARY SORTHUE] 1871
aansua o7 Asjumoddo e
SUl PIIONED) ‘MO ST
7151 307 exedord
pue uies] 01 Aymrnaroddo
UR 9ABY 1,10D SUBTHIONED
pro-1EahA-% 18 10 3a0iad OF
W0330eq I Y "Q0000E
UBYL 910U 07 71U
, -ied Junprom 10J sist Sur
-JIEm palewInse pue ‘swreid
-0xd ooyosaxd mroaduou
‘Aarrenb-ydny Jo mo peoud
9TE SOIjTiIR] JISU3 PUe usIp
-2 Q009LT BTIONED
Uf "uoneonpy jo mounred
~3( "§'(1 941 o1 BupIodoE
‘toouossad peapumy Aprqnd
01 883001 Y0B] SPIO-1L9h-

S HOTYBU M0 JO juadiad:

Axg -Sapuny 91e1s ySnoud
1,UST 9103 9511BI3q 218D
PIELO PSZIPISqns Ul POTIOID
10U SIe {[1S URIPRDD 9]q
~13119 O Z'] UL 9I0TA
‘noneInpe Ares w ydnous
Bunseaut 3 ust AjduIs Brioy

-freD 9roddns onqnd oip
pue yoressar o aydsaq
‘004 95 941 ur Junssau

UBY2 1MISI 19135q ® “esd
xod prgo 1od 1uasiad €1
JO TN € IDAT]OD SWield
-0id pooypyo Aprea A
-rentb-1 813 synys Suojsgy
u3IpIO 1oyl Surpiacad
spym sanonpoxd siow oq

03 syusred Bunjiom Surrod.

~dns AqQ - suoneIoUsg om)

20g YT, 01 radS

JKENNEN VRITOR
ANV JHSTHE W AT

1oddns swerdord yuswdo
-] POOUPTIYD Alies.

Anpenb-udng ‘o8vorgyy

IO ANSISATU(Y SYY pUB
T35 WIOIJ YOTeosoy Mt .
01 SUIPIOIY IUSUNSIA

-UT 1IRWIS B § a0neonpa

AfTeq LTeS[ ST 93UoPIAS

ayy ‘suotuido punleg

"O¥RIS O UK SPIO

. -1224-% (e 103 sweiSoid
[ooyssaxd Atequnjon.

pUNJ PINOYS BIUIONED)

- Aes s1ajoa Ay yo jusoiad

L9 PUNOJ BILIOIED
Jo ammansuy Ao o1qng
s} pue ‘ejqeployge pue
3141889008 SIOUT UONBONDS
AJ180 SyRLU 0] STOM PIIOYS
WOWIIDA0S MU} STedt
-1aury Jo 1uadzad Q6 18l
punog punyg sIeax 9ALL
18154 21, -senumioddo
uoneonps Apres sznuoud
SIDI0A 1B} MOYS 90T

ur paronpuod sjjod omJ,
“pue1Ioduw 51 UOEINDPo.
AjTer [SUBIMIQULY JO
Anxoleur o1 03 1820
ST UTL] SUO ‘SoTum} [0
-nrjod s[nejoa 38913 u

Jog Arpieg

“RYM A
* % \va 1V SMIN

WO 3343vs

SMIN 3380VS/WOD BILLIM,.
FIG0LNIWYIDYS/NOIHO0STIYS

1€ 'ON 'S0¢ “TON
L581 @3annod

L10Z b€ ARYANYF AVASANL




	Blank Page
	02.06.2017 Commission Agenda.pdf
	Approve the minutes from the December 5, 2016 meeting.  
	Accept the Executive Committee Report from the December 5, 2016 meeting.

	03.1 Approve the minutes from the December 5, 2016 Commission Meeting.pdf
	Monday February 6, 2017
	Agenda Item 3.1

	Blank Page
	03.2 Accept the Executive Committee Report from December 5, 2016 meeting.pdf
	Monday February 6, 2017
	Agenda Item 3.2

	Blank Page
	03.4 Accept the FY 2016-17 Second Quarter Financial Report.pdf
	Monday February 6, 2017
	Agenda Item 3.4

	09.0 Communications.pdf
	Monday February 6, 2017
	Agenda Item 9.0

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Commission Report Qtr 2 FY16-17.pdf
	Qtr 1 FY16-17

	Blank Page
	06.0 Presentation of early findings from the 2016 Kindergarten Readiness Assessment.pdf
	Monday February 6, 2017
	Agenda Item 6.0

	Blank Page
	03.4 Commission Report Qtr 2 FY16-17.pdf
	Qtr 1 FY16-17




